
 
 
 
                      

 

July 16, 2025 
 
Dear Vice Chair Pedoeem, Commissioner Bartley, Commissioner Hedrick, 
Commissioner Linden, and Planning Director Sartori: 
 
I respectfully petition for reconsideration of the Planning Board’s June 5, 2025 
decision (June 26, 2025 resolution mailed July 10, 2025) to approve the MHP 
Amherst application - Preliminary Plan 120250010 / Site Plan 820250010. 
 
I am making this request for good cause because of new information learned from 
planning staff and MCDOT after the hearing. 
 
I would like to request that this petition be made available to the public by linking it to 
the agenda item for this reconsideration on the planning board’s website. 
 
1. APPLICANT’S ERRONEOUS STATEMENT DURING THE HEARING ABOUT 

THE LIGHTING AND STREETSCAPE ON ELKIN STREET 
 
The staff report was largely silent on the lighting and streetscape plans for the Elkin 
Street frontage. During the 6/5/25 hearing, the applicant’s attorney stated the 
following: 

“I will note that we are upgrading the streetscape along Elkin, so the issue about 
the lighting is being addressed because we also agree everyone that's living there 
does deserve to have a nice streetscape, a well-lit streetscape and we will be 
providing that” 

 
However, according to planning staff, there are no plans to implement a “nice 
streetscape” or a “well lit streetscape”. Instead, the applicant plans to change the 
four existing Pepco-owned street lights from high pressure sodium to light emitting 
diode (LED). 
 
The existing lighting on Elkin Street is poor. The lights are owned and maintained by 
Pepco and mounted on the existing wood utility poles. These are roadway scale 
streetlights, spaced far apart, with an average distance of 175 feet along the 700 foot 
frontage. Pepco is currently under a 2024 order by the Maryland Public Service 
Commission in response to a formal complaint about the failure to provide street 
lighting service that is safe, adequate, just, reasonable, economical, and efficient as 
required by state law. The complaint outlined issues with slow repairs, poor 
recordkeeping, a deficient outage reporting website and billing errors (for example 
Parks currently has a credit of $56K on its Pepco streetlighting account 
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55017305859 after a reconciliation that resulted from a decades-long overbilling I 
had flagged for Parks Director Mike Riley in 2023). 

 
2. SITE PLAN AND PRELIMINARY PLAN FAILS TO COMPLY WITH  

1) THE  COMPLETE STREETS DESIGN GUIDE,   
2) MCDOT'S AND PLANNING’S STREETLIGHTING DESIGN 
REQUIREMENTS, INSTALLATION PROCEDURES AND SPECIFICATIONS OR  
3) COUNTY'S VISION ZERO PLAN 
 

According to the County’s Master Plan of Highways and Transitways, Elkin Street is 
classified as a "neighborhood connector". The Complete Streets Design Guide 
recommends "Pedestrian-Scale Lighting" for neighborhood connectors. The 
applicant’s plan to make minor alterations to the existing Pepco-owned, roadway 
scale streetlights fails to achieve pedestrian scale lighting. 
 
MCDOT’s and Planning’s Streetlighting Design Requirements document has safety 
standards that call for certain lighting levels. Because of the height, placement and 
distance between the existing Pepco-owned, roadway scale streetlights, the 
applicant’s plan fails to meet the desired lighting levels. 
 
Montgomery County’s Vision Zero Plan S-11 prioritizes improved lighting: “improve 
nighttime illumination utilizing leading practices for illumination and lighting. The 
applicant’s plan fails to comply with this recommendation. 
 
3. A BETTER PLAN WOULD BE TO INSTALL PEDESTRIAN SCALE LIGHTING 

ALONG THE ELKIN STREET FRONTAGE 
Pedestrian scale lighting could be implemented by installing underground fed, metal 
pole streetlights in the public right of way between the curb and the sidewalk. The 
lights would meet the specifications of the Wheaton Streetscape Standards and be 
appropriately spaced to provide the lighting levels required by MCDOT’s and 
Planning’s Streetlighting Design Requirements document. Such lights would be 
owned and maintained by MCDOT which has a much better track record than Pepco 
of providing well-maintained, energy efficient lighting that maximizes pedestrian 
safety by providing property levels of illumination. 
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4. INSTALLING PROPER LIGHTING WOULD NOT UNDULY BURDEN THE 
PROJECT 

My estimate of the cost to install proper lighting on Elkin Street is $75,000. This is 
based on the cost, per MCDOT, of a similar MCDOT infill lighting project planned for 
a longer stretch of roadway on the north side of Manor Road in Chevy Chase 
between Connecticut Avenue and Jones Bridge Rd in Chevy Chase ($130,000). As 
stated above, Parks currently has a $56,000 credit on its Pepco street lighting 
invoice. Because this project has a Parks component, perhaps MNCPPC/Parks 
could contribute these funds toward installing proper lighting on Elkin Street. 
 
MHP Amherst is a long envisioned project which involves new housing, a new MHP 
headquarters building, a new Wheaton Arts & Culture Center and a new park. 
It would be unfortunate if such a great project in which the County, State and 
nonprofit housing sector are investing fails to address this important public safety 
issue. Future and current Wheaton residents, MHP employees and visitors deserve 
to move around in a safe community with a great streetscape. 

 
Respectfully, 

Al Carr 
3904 Washington St 
Kensington, MD 20895 
 
cc: Ms. Pat Harris (representing MHP) 
 
attachments 
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ATTACHMENT A: MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMPLETE STREETS DESIGN 
GUIDE REQUIREMENTS FOR NEIGHBORHOOD CONNECTORS  MAY 2024 
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ATTACHMENT B: MCDOT's & PLANNING’s STREETLIGHTING DESIGN 
REQUIREMENTS, INSTALLATION PROCEDURES, & SPECIFICATIONS DEC 2024 
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ATTACHMENT C: MONTGOMERY COUNTY VISION ZERO PLAN S-11 
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ATTACHMENT D: WHEATON STREETSCAPE STANDARDS JULY 2023 
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ATTACHMENT E: PARKS/MNCPPC’s PEPCO STREETLIGHTING INVOICE MARCH 2025 
 
 

 

 


